
 

 

Cordova Historic Preservation Commission 
Meeting NOTICE and AGENDA for Tuesday, April 9, 2024 from 5:30 – 6:30 pm 

Location:  Education Room (upper level), Cordova Center 

And via Zoom   

https://zoom.us/j/95619887750?pwd=ODJSWEdob1Z6ZzJFTW0wbUt6dDIyZz09 

 Meeting ID   956 1988 7750             Passcode     671733 

Members and Affiliations (see City Code, Title 18, for more detail): 
Nancy Bird, Cordova Historian, Chair 

Jim Casement, Cordova public member 

Heather Hall, Archaeologist (US Forest Service) 

Sylvia Lange, Native Village of Eyak 

Christy Mog, Archaeologist (US Forest Service) 

Kris Ranney, Cordova Planning Commission member 

Ashley Bivin, Cordova Historical Society,  

Meeting Agenda 

1. Call to Order and roll call 

2. Public Comment Period 

3. Approval of Agenda 

4. Correspondence, from Alaska Office of History & Archaeology 

a. Email letter regarding Certified Local Government (CLG) Program Grants 

b. Email regarding April 5 workshop and next quarterly call on May 8 for Alaska CLG 

representatives 

5. Approval of Minutes – January 9, 2024 meeting 

6. Review and plan timeline for completion of CLG grant application for revision and 

publication of Cordova Historic Walking Tour brochure 

7. Discuss next steps inventory for building inventory survey work 

8. Quarterly gatherings of statewide CLG reps with Office of History & Archaeology 

9. Review Pending Calendar and task list 

10. Schedule next Commission meeting 

11. Public Comment Period 

12. Commission Closing Comments 

13. Adjournment 

https://zoom.us/j/95619887750?pwd=ODJSWEdob1Z6ZzJFTW0wbUt6dDIyZz09
https://zoom.us/j/95619887750?pwd=ODJSWEdob1Z6ZzJFTW0wbUt6dDIyZz09










1 

 

 

Annual Certified Local Government Report 

 
The Alaska Certified Local Government Historic Preservation Program State Guidelines call 

for each Certified Local Government (CLG) to submit an annual report of its activities to the 

Alaska Office of History and Archaeology for the past calendar year (January 1- December 

31). The purpose of the annual report is to provide information on the local government’s 

historic preservation activities. This information helps the Office of History and Archaeology 

to evaluate local CLG programs and to be aware of the activities of the historic preservation 

commissions around the state. Please complete the following questions and provide any 

additional information in attachments. If you do not wish to use the form, please be sure all 

questions are addressed in your report. 

 

Name of CLG:       Cordova Historic Preservation Commission      

Date of Report:  March 29, 2024 

Prepared by:  Nancy Bird 

 
A. LOCAL PRESERVATION ORDINANCES: 

 

1. Have there been any new ordinances, amendments or proposed amendments made 

to the local historic preservation ordinance? If yes, please attach. 

 

 Yes  X  No 
 

2. Have there been any changes or proposed changes regarding historic preservation to 

the local comprehensive plan? If yes, please attach. 
 

                Yes                 X  No 
 

B. LOCAL HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISION: 

 

1. Please list the current members of the historic preservation commission noting the 

disciplines they fill (archaeologist, historian, architect/historical architect, Alaska 

Native, and general). 

 

Kris Ranney, Cordova Planning & Zoning Commission; Sylvia Lange, Native 

Village of Eyak; Ashley Bivin, Cordova Historical Society; Heather Hall, 

Archaeologist, US Forest Service; Jim Casement and Nancy Bird, Cordova 

historians; and Christy Mog, Archaeologist, Cordova Ranger District, US 

Forest Service. 

2. Have there been any new members appointed to your commission? 
 

 Yes       X  No 
 



2 

 

 

3. If yes, please attach a resume for any new professional members (archaeologist, 

historian, architectural historian or architect), and a short statement of occupation 

and expertise for any new non-professional members. 



3 

 

 

3. Are there any vacancies on the commission? 
 

  Yes           X  No 
 

5. If yes, list the positions that are vacant noting duration and efforts to fill them. 

 

      

6. Please provide us with the dates of commission meetings. 

 

Martch 16, 2023; April 12, 2023; May 8, 2023; October 24, 2023; and January 

9, 2024 

7. Please attach copies of your meeting minutes for the year. 

 

 X  Attached         Not Attached 

 

8. Please list any CLG or historic preservation related training sessions or workshops 

attended by commission members and staff. 

 

(1) Webinar for recipients of the Alaska Maritime Heritage grants, held Feb. 15, 

2024; Nancy Bird attended as an assistant to the Cape St. Elias Lightkeepers 

Association grant. 

(2) Quarterly Certified Local Government Update meeting, held Feb. 7, 2024; 

Nancy Bird attended 

C. SURVEY AND INVENTORY OF HISTORIC PROPERTIES: 

 

1. Has your CLG conducted any local surveys in the past year? If you answer yes 

please complete questions 2-4. 
 

      Yes X  No 
 

2. Please summarize the survey activity, including the number and types of surveys 

conducted and the total amount of acreage covered. If you provide this information in 

an attachment please note below. 

 

N/A 

3. How many historic properties were recorded and reported to the Alaska Heritage 

Resources Survey (AHRS)? 

 

0 

 
Please provide, in an attached document, a summary of the results of each survey 



4 

 

 

conducted, including type of resources recorded, the number of new sites or structures 

recorded, the number of properties investigated during the survey, and the number of 

volunteers and property owners involved. 

N/A 

 
 

4. Do local government staff and non-staff researchers use the local cultural 

resources inventory? 
 

XX  Yes  No 
 

5. If yes, please provide an estimate of how often and by which users your 

inventory is used. 

Many times per year by US Forest Service archaeologists; and several times 

per year by Cordova museum staff and by Historic Preservation Commission 

members 

 

D. PRESERVATION PLANNING ACTIVITIES: 

 
1. Are you currently working on writing or updating your local preservation plan?    

            Yes X   No 

2. If yes, please provide us with a brief summary of your progress writing or updating 

your local preservation plan. 

 

In the spring of 2023, we reviewed the very old plan (dating from the late 

1990s) and looked at other Alaskan community’s plans. We adopted a revised 

plan in May 2023 and then amended it (for clarification and succinctness) in the 

fall of 2023, after consulting with the Office of History & Archaeology. The 

current plan covers a three-year time period from 2023-2026. 

 
3. If you have an adopted preservation plan how are you implementing the plan’s goals 

and objectives? 

 

We are actively working to achieve the goals for 2023 and 2024. We completed 

revision of the Preservation Plan in 2023; we started editing the Cordova Historic 

Walking Tour for its re-publication in 2024; and, also began work to update our 

building inventory survey. One volunteer spent about 40-60 hours putting data into 

the inventory’s spreadsheet. 

 

 



5 

 

 

E. NATIONAL REGISTER PROGRAM PARTICIPATION: 

 

1. Has your commission evaluated any properties for listing in the National Register of 

Historic Places in the past year? If you answer yes please complete questions 2-5. 
 

 Yes XX  No 
 

2. Please provide a list of names and locations of historic properties evaluated. 

 

N/A 

3. Please list the dates of public hearings or regularly scheduled meetings at which the 

public had the opportunity to comment on the nomination(s). 

 

N/A 

 

4. Please explain how the commission arranged for review of the nomination by a 

qualified historian, archaeologist, architect or historical architect if not represented 

on the commission. 

 

N/A 
 

F. PROTECTION OF HISTORIC PROPERTIES: 

 

1. Does your commission or staff review local projects for impacts on cultural resources? 

 

XX  Yes   No 

2. If yes, how many local projects were reviewed in the past year? 

 

0 

 
Please provide a summary or list of the types of local projects reviewed that impacted 

or had the potential to impact historic properties.  

 

N/A 

3. Has your CLG participated in any Section 106 consultations? 

 

No 
 

4. If yes, what were the projects and did you participate, through consultation, in the 

development of Memorandums of Agreements or Programmatic Agreements, to 

resolve any adverse effects to historic resources within your community? 

  



6 

 

 

N/A 

 
G. PUBLIC PRESERVATION EDUCATION PROJECTS: 

 

1. Has your CLG conducted any public education projects addressing historic 

preservation in the past year? 
 

                Yes XX  No 
 

If yes, please list them.       

 

H. HISTORIC PRESERVATION GRANT ACTIVITIES: 

 

1. Did your CLG apply for and receive any CLG Historic Preservation Fund grants in 

the past year? 
 

 Yes  XX  No   We did not apply in 2023 (which this report covers), 

although we did apply for two grants in early 2024 
 

 

2. If yes, please provide a list of grants applied for and received. 

 

In 2024, the two grants applied for were: (1) Re-publication of the Cordova 

Historic Walking Tour (to be awarded and received in May 2024) and (2) 

Training Workshop for Building Inventory Survey (applied for but not awarded) 

 

3. Please list and briefly describe of other (non-CLG Historic Preservation Fund) 

preservation grants applied for and received. 

 

We assisted the Cape St. Elias LightKeeper’s Association in applying for a 

Maritime Heritage grant which was awarded in February 2024. This grant will 

help purchase cedar shingles for the light station boathouse.  

 

I. OTHER PRESERVATION ACTIVITIES: 

 

1. Please summarize any other local events, projects or achievements involving historic 

resources in the community. 

 

      

 

J. UPDATED CONTACT INFORMATION: 

 

1. Please provide us with the following contact information so we can insure our 



7 

 

 

records are up to date: 

 

COMMISSION STAFF 

 

Name:  Kevin Johnson 
 

Title:   Cordova City Planner 

 

Address:   PO Box 1210, Cordova, AK 99574 
  

Phone number:  907-424-6220 
 

Email:  planning@cityofcordova.net 
 

 
 

COMMISSION CHAIR 

 

Name:   Nancy Bird 
 

Phone number: 907-429-5800  
 

Email:   nbird5800@gmail.com 
 

ADDITIONAL CLG/COMMISSION CONTACT 
 
 

Name:  Ashley Bivin 
 

Title:  Cordova Historical Museum Director, M.A. 
 

Phone number: 907-424-6250 
 

Email:  abivin@cityofcordova.net 

 

For clarification or more information about the annual report requirements, please contact Maria 

Lewis, CLG Program Coordinator at the Alaska Office of History and Archaeology at (907) 269-

8717 or maria.lewis@alaska.gov. Annual reports can be mailed to the Office of History & 

Archaeology, 550 W 7th Ave Suite 1310, Anchorage, Alaska 99501-3565 or emailed to 

maria.lewis@alaska.gov. 

mailto:maria.lewis@alaska.gov
mailto:maria.lewis@alaska.gov


 

 

Cordova Historic Preservation Commission 
Tuesday January 9, 2024 - 5:30-6:30 
Location: Mayor’s Conference Room, Lower Level, Cordova Center 
 
Members Present:  
Nancy Bird, Ashley Bivin, Christy Mog, Sylvia Lange, and Jim Casement; Kris Ranney arrived about 15 
minutes into the meeting. 
Visitors: Kevin Johnson  
Public Comments - None 
Approval of Agenda – Motion by Bivin, seconded by Lange to add a discussion to the agenda regarding 
how to find a home for an antique fishing vessel. Revised agenda approved without objection. 
Approval of Minutes – Motion by Mog, seconded by Lange to approve the minutes of October 24, 2023. 
Motion passed unanimously.   
 
Review/approval Certified Local Government (CLG) Grant Application 1 – Discussion of this grant 
application to revise and republish the “Cordova Historic Walking Tour” brochure was led by Bird and 
Bivin. They intend to work with a graphic design business in Juneau on this project; they will also rely on 
volunteers from the Commission and the Historical Society to finalize the brochure’s content. Those 
volunteer hours will provide most of the matching funds required for the matching grant. 
    Motion by Lange, seconded by Mog to approve Resolution 24-01, “… endorsing a grant application 
titled “Revision and re-publication of Cordova Historic Walking Tour brochure” to the Alaska Office of 
History and Archaeology.” Motion passed unanimously.  
Review/approval Certified Local Government (CLG) Grant Application 2 – Bird referenced her Jan. 5th 
memo describing both grant applications for details on what is proposed to be done through this grant 
project. She said that several firms are being contacted for their cost estimates to conduct a training 
workshop in Cordova to kick off the building inventory survey project.  
   Motion by Casement, seconded by Lange to approve Resolution 24-02, “… endorsing a grant 
application titled “Training Workshop: Historic Building Inventory Survey” to the Alaska Office of History 
and Archaeology.” Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Finding homes for antique fishing vessels – Lange reiterated her desire to get the Commission to help in 
saving a 1932 or 1934 company boat that was built at Crystal Falls cannery, down Eyak River. She and her 
husband have housed the vessel for a few years but it had to be moved outside this past year and, 
although it is under a secure tarp, it may be deteriorating by the weather.  
    Discussion turned to another historic fishing boat, the Starthrower, which was built by Henry Stewart, 
a long-time fisher and boat builder. The Starthrower was donated to the Cordova Historical Society about 
7 years ago and is stored inside a warehouse at a cost of about $2,000 per year. Bivin said the Society has 
struggled to locate a site to display this boat and has also been alerted to liability issues and the 
potential cost of insurance. 
   Most Commission members expressed support for preserving old fishing boats but recognize the cost 
and potential insurance liabilities. Consensus to add this issue to the Commission’s Pending Calendar of 
Issues to try to address in the future. 
 
Next meeting date – Tentatively, the Commission will try to meet again Tuesday, March 5th from 5:30 to 
6:30 pm.  
 
There were no public comments or closing comments by Commission members. Meeting adjourned at 
6:25 pm. 







































Quarterly CLG Update
February 7, 2024



What is a Certified Local 
Government (CLG)?



 Act amended in 1980-Added the local 
partnership- CLG’s

 Created a preservation partnership between the 
CLG, SHPO, and the NPS

 SHPO and NPS work jointly to certify and 
monitor the CLG program nationally

National Historic Preservation 
Act -1966

Certified Local Governments (U.S. National Park Service) (nps.gov)



Alaska’s Certified Local 
Governments



What is the Purpose 
of a Certified Local 
Government?

1. To ensure the broadest possible 
participation of local 
governments in the national 
historic preservation program 
while maintaining standards 
consistent with the National 
Historic Preservation Act, and 
the Secretary of the Interior’s 
“Standards and Guidelines for 
Archaeology and Historic 
Preservation” 

http://www.nps.gov/history/local-
law/arch_stnds_0.htm



What is the Purpose of a 
Certified Local 
Government?

• To enrich, develop, and help 
maintain local historic 
preservation programs in 
cooperation and coordination 
with the SHPO; and

• Provide an avenue for the SHPO 
to provide financial and technical 
assistance to further these 
purposes.



Questions About 
What is a CLG?



CLG Benefits & 
Requirements



Alaska receives an annual appropriation from the Historic Preservation Fund and is 
required to give at least 10% of that funding to CLGs as subgrants. These grants can fund 
a wide variety of projects including: 

Surveys

National Register nominations

Rehabilitation work 

Design guidelines

Educational programs

Training

Structural and condition assessments

Feasibility studies



CLG Benefits: 
Technical Expertise

 As a CLG, communities have direct access 
to SHPO staff for assistance with their 
commission, building assessments, surveys 
and nominations, and general preservation 
assistance. 

 State staff and the NPS offer trainings for 
CLGs as well, an added benefit of the 
partnership.



Other training opportunities that we plan to offer soon are webinars 
hosted by the National Alliance of Historic Preservation Commissions. 
Webinars are free for NAPC members, and the following is a sample of 
these NAPC webinars:

CLG Benefits: Training Opportunities

 The ABCs of Historic Designation Pt. 1

 Best Practices for an Effective Local Preservation 
Commission

 Not Another Integrity Debate: Local Preservation 
Efforts and Strategies in Action

 Preservation Planning: Developing Your Vision, Goals, 
and Priorities

 Community Outreach Strategies for Historic 
Preservation Commissions and Boards

 Social Media Strategies for Historic Preservation 
Commissions and Boards



CLG Training Opportunities

 OHA’s Preservation Education Series

 CLG Commission Trainings

 NAPC Webinars

 NAPC Biennial Conference



Summary of CLG Requirements

Local: Help maintain and develop local 
historic preservation programs in 
cooperation and coordination with the 
SHPO.

Commission: Maintain a Historic 
Preservation Commission that follows the 
guidelines of the program.

Annual Reporting: Annual Reports are Due 
April 1, 2024. (Annual reports are due on 
April 1 covering the prior year.)

Evaluation: SHPO performs an evaluation of 
each CLG approximately every four years.

Page 1 of 6 of annual report template



Questions About 
CLG Requirements & 

Benefits?



Upcoming Activities



Upcoming CLG Training 
Opportunity
 The FORUM is a biennial national conference focused on the 

issues facing local historic preservation boards and 
commissions. 

 FORUM includes dozens of educational tours, and five days 
of non-stop networking for commission staff and volunteers 
representing local, state and national organizations and 
government agencies.

 Plan to have travel grants (60/40) available for this 
opportunity for CLG staff and commission members. 

 Forum (napcommissions.org)

Save the Date! July 31 – August 4, 2024



NAPC Memberships



Alaska Historic Preservation Plan Update
Upcoming Planning Activities

 Launching Webpage

 Quick Poll

 Meeting-in-a-Box for Historical Societies and CLGs

 Scheduling Regional Workshops



Alaska Historic Preservation
Plan Update

BP Energy Center, Birch Room 

1014 Energy Court, Anchorage, AK 99508

Time: 8:45am - 5:00pm

Meeting Format: In-Person / Virtual

Alaska Office of History and Archaeology 
and State Historic Preservation Office 
Annual Workshop | Friday April 5, 2024



Alaska Historic Preservation
Plan Update

Topics to be covered:

 OHA/SHPO Program Updates 

 Historic Preservation Plan Update

 Updated Guidance Panel 

 Paleontology, Dr. Pat Druckenmiller

 AHRS: Current Updates and Issues

Alaska Office of History and Archaeology 
and State Historic Preservation Office 
Annual Workshop | Friday April 5, 2024



Annual Reports Due April 1, 2024!

Contact me if you need assistance with the 
Annual report.

Upcoming CLG Evaluations and Preservation 
Plan Workshops.

Page 1 of 6 of annual report template



Questions About 
Upcoming Activities?



Next Quarterly CLG Update
May 8, 2024 @2pm



Questions or Comments



Cordova Historic Preservation Commission 
 

Pending Calendar Issues/Activities as of April 2024 

 
Training or educational 

• Training session on use of Resource Inventory (Interest expressed by Wendy Ranney) 
 

• Ground penetrating radar 
 

 

Projects 
• Castle Inn – find new location for it and investigate grant opportunities to assist 

 

• Saving historic fishing vessels: 
 

o Company fishing boat built at Crystal Falls Cannery about 1932 – Sylvia Lange and Greg 
Meyer are currently storing in outside and well-covered.  

o F/V Starthrower, built by Henry Stewart, and last owned/fished by Sully; donated to the 
Cordova Historical Society which is paying about $2,000/year for indoor storage 

 

•  


	1-Agenda.4-9-2024-CHPC-Mtg
	2-GrantAwardNotification-March2024-WalkingTour
	3-April-5-workshop-OfficeHistArchaeology
	Slide 1

	4-CY2023-CordovaCLG-AnnualRptForm
	5-Cordova Historic Preservation Commission Minutes Jan. 9-2024
	6-CordovaHistWalkingTour-GrantApplication-Awarded2024
	7-Slides from Feb 7 CLG Meeting
	8-CHPC - PendingCalendar

